
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

7 September 2022 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 15 September 
2022 at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 
6AE. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Services Manager 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 August 2022 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN CONSULTATION (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 Report of the Assistant Director (Planning) on Hertfordshire County Council’s 
Hertfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan Consultation.  
 

8.   INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING SCHEME, PARKING 
PLACES AND OTHER WAITING RESTRICTIONS, IN VARIOUS ROADS, 
PEARTREE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY (Pages 13 - 30) 
 

 Report of the Assistant Director (Regeneration and Economic Development) on the 
Introduction of Resident Permit Parking Scheme, Parking Places and other waiting 
restrictions, in various roads, Peartree Ward, Welwyn Garden City. 
 

9.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

10.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 11 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

PART II 
 

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  

 
Circulation: Councillors A.Hellyer (Chairman) 

S.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
S.Bonfante 
G.Michaelides 
L.Musk 
R.Platt 
J.Quinton 

D.Richardson 
P.Shah 
C.Stanbury 
K.Thorpe 
S.Thusu 
F.Wachuku 
 



 
 Co-opted Members:- 

Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on  or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Matthew Wilson  
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Various Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 15 SEPTEMBER 2022 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (PLANNING) 
 
MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN CONSULTATION 
 
1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1 Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) has published its Hertfordshire Minerals and 

Waste Local Plan for consultation.  Consultation closes on 30 September 2022. Once 
adopted this Plan will replace the policies contained within the existing Minerals Local 
Plan (adopted in 2007) and Waste Core Strategy (adopted 2012). 
 

1.2 Minerals and Waste Plans can be separate or combined documents and until 2021, 
the County Council were progressing separate documents, though the decision was 
taken to combine them into one Plan using the work done so far and taking on board 
comments received on the plans. The County Council have previously undertaken a 
number of consultations on what should be contained within the Mineral Local Plan 
and the site selection methodology. 
 

1.3 The last consultation was considered by Members of this Panel on 7 March2019, and 
this Council raised the following concerns: 
 
• The potential for cumulative impacts arising from the scale of mineral extraction 

concentrated in two allocations to the west of Hatfield.  
 
• Concern that the scale of mineral extraction identified could prejudice the delivery 

of housing in north west Hatfield within the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan period. 
 

1.4 This latest consultation is on the single Mineral and Waste Local Plan and is a formal 
regulation 18 consultation stage.  A further consultation stage would be follow and 
submission of the plan for examination. 
 

1.5 The main body of the report highlights the key issues whilst the proposed Council’s 
response has been included in Appendix A to this report.  

 
2 Recommendation(s) 

 
2.1 That the Panel agrees the proposed response to the Hertfordshire Mineral and Waste 

Local Plan Consultation (2022) as set out in Appendix A to this report. 
 

3 Explanation 
 
3.1 Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) are the minerals and waste planning authority 

for Hertfordshire and have a statutory duty to prepare a Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan.  This Local Plan will form part of the development plan for the area.   
 

3.2 The Plan should ensure a steady and adequate supply of minerals to meet the needs 
of the county, and to maintain a network of waste management facilities to deal with 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



- 2 - 

the different types of wastes arising. Plans also provide the necessary development 
management policies to deal with planning applications for such development.  
 

3.3 Minerals and Waste Plans can be separate or combined documents and until 2021, 
the County Council were progressing separate documents, though the decision was 
taken to combine them into one Plan using the work done so far and taking on board 
comments received on the plans.  
 

3.4 HCC is consulting on the Draft Plan version of the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 
Consultation started on 22 July 2022 and closes on 30 September 2022.  Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council is a statutory consultee.  

 
Minerals Policies 

 
3.5 One of the primary aims of the Plan is to ensure a steady and adequate supply of 

mineral to meet the needs of the county over the plan period to 2040. This is achieved 
by allocating sites for future extraction, as well as safeguarding existing minerals sites 
and infrastructure. 
 

3.6 The Plan sets out the strategy for ensuring there is a sufficient supply of new minerals 
mainly required for construction and agriculture. Welwyn Hatfield is particularly 
affected by those policies which relate to the allocation of sites for the extraction of 
sand and gravel and safeguarding of sites.  
 
Policy 2: Meeting Sand and Gravel Needs  
 

3.7 Plan Policy 2: Meeting Sand and Gravel Needs identifies the requirement for sand 
and gravel over the plan period and allocates three sites in the County to meet that 
need.  Two of the sites are either within the Borough or on the edge of the borough.   
 

3.8 MAS02: Hatfield Aerodrome - This site is located on the edge of the Borough, largely 
falling within St Albans District Council and would be accessed off the A1057.  A 
planning application was submitted and recommended for approval by HCC 
Development Control Committee in October 2020. It is included in the Plan however 
because the decision notice has (at the time of writing) yet to be issued. When the 
decision notice is issued, HCC propose for this allocation to be removed from the 
Plan (depending on the stage of preparation the Plan is at), and its figures instead 
added to the overall mineral reserves. 
 

3.9 MAS03: Land Adjoining Coopers Green Lane - This site is located to the North West 
of Hatfield and relates to the housing site allocated in the submitted Welwyn Hatfield 
Local Plan SDS5 (HAT1).   The Plan emphasises that the extraction of minerals 
should be complementary to the residential allocation, and phasing of extraction 
should not affect the timely provision of housing within the Welwyn Hatfield Local 
Plan.  The draft Plan identifies the start of extraction in years 1-5 (2020-2025) and 
extraction is expected to take 9-14 years.  Whilst the early phases of housing will be 
constructed on land which would not be subject to mineral extraction there is the 
potential for mineral extraction to delay house building if it cannot come forward in a 
timely fashion.  

 
3.10 In response to the minerals local plan proposed submission consultation January 

2019 (the preparation of which was stopped to progress this single minerals and 
waste local plan) the Council did not raise objection to the principal of extraction of 

Page 6



- 3 - 

minerals from these two sites on an individual basis but identified concern about the 
cumulative impacts from the combination of sites and the potential to impact on the 
delivery of housing.  The draft response (Appendix A) again does this. 
 

Response to Policy 8 
 

3.11 Consistent with the response to the draft Minerals Plan (2019), the draft response 
(Appendix A) suggests that the Minerals Plan could be argued to be overestimating 
the need for mineral extraction over the plan period. It uses the more generous annual 
provision figure of 1.31 Mt based on the previous regional apportionment figure 
instead of aiming for a ten year annual average sales figure of 1.17 Mt as many other 
authorities have in their adopted plans, or even a three year annual average figure of 
1.19 Mt. A ten year based figure in minerals local plans, as supported by the minerals 
industry and as set out in the NPPF, picks up both periods of economic growth and 
economic stagnation/decline. 
 

3.12 As a consequence, it is considered that there is no need to allocate MAS03: Land 
Adjoining Coopers Green Lane. However, this does not mean that no extraction 
should take place but rather it should be treated as a windfall site where the principals 
of prior extraction would be the dominant driver rather than the need to maximise the 
amount of minerals extracted. This is the approach set out in the Welwyn Hatfield 
Local Plan. 

 
Policy 4: Site Safeguarding and Consultation Areas 
 

3.13 The Plan seeks to safeguard minerals and waste management sites and associated 
infrastructure that is of critical importance.  Burnside (Hatfield) is identified as one of 
several Mineral Development Sites (MDS) that play an important role in the operation 
of the minerals industry.  
 

3.14 Burnside, which adjoins the Strategic Development Site Birchall Garden Suburb 
identified in the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan, and Birchall Lane/Cole Green lies within 
the policy area for Birchall Garden Suburb.  

 
3.15 The proposed WHBC response raises a concern that Submitted Local Plan Policy 

SP19 of the emerging Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan proposes a sustainable urban 
extension at Birchall Garden Suburb for 600 dwellings, plus development and 
associated uses within East Herts District Council; which are adjacent to or located 
within close proximity to the above mineral facilities (site SDS2). It will suggest that 
the Plan should acknowledge this and include this proposal within the list of 
developments where there will be no requirement to consult HCC, as the County 
Council will be involved in the production of a Masterplan for the site. The proposed 
response also notes that a green buffer has been proposed around Burnside on the 
Policies Map, and the area south of the facilities at Birchall Lane/Cole Green is being 
proposed as open space. 
 
Waste Policies 

 
3.16 The other primary aim of the Plan is to make sure that the waste that is produced 

within Hertfordshire is managed appropriately. The Plan does not allocate sites for 
future waste management development, rather it seeks to direct any future 
applications to the most sustainable locations.  

 

Page 7



- 4 - 

3.17 This is set out in Policy 3: Meeting Waste Management Needs. Proposals for new 
waste management facilities are directed to the main towns in Hertfordshire as that 
is where the majority of waste arises, and specifically within these towns, either to 
existing waste sites, existing employment sites, or sites which are allocated for future 
employment in District and Borough Local Plans. This policy identifies both Welwyn 
Garden City and Hatfield as settlements which would in principle be suitable for waste 
facilities, though the specific details of any such facility would be subject to criteria 
set out in the policy. The proposed response to the consultation highlights the 
importance of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council being consulted in relation to any 
facilities which may be proposed within the borough.  
 
Implications 
 

4 Legal Implication(s) 
 
4.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with this report. The preparation of 

a Minerals and Waste Local Plan is a statutory requirement for upper tier and unitary 
authorities, and forms part of the development plan for the area. 
 

5 Financial Implication(s) 
 

5.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.  
 

6 Risk Management Implications 
 

6.1 There is a risk that in not responding to the consultation it could have both direct and 
indirect implications for Welwyn Hatfield.  
 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising directly as a result of this 
report. 
 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 
 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly as a result of this report. 
 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 
 

No climate change implications have been identified resulting from this report 
 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 
 

10.1 There are no known Human Resources implications as a result of this. Any planning 
applications for Minerals and Waste developments are determined by Hertfordshire 
County Council, though Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council will be a consultee. 
 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no specific health and wellbeing implications associated with this report. 
The Minerals Local Plan itself contains a development management policy on health 
and wellbeing which will allow any health and wellbeing impacts associated with 
mineral extraction to be assessed at the planning application stage. The site selection 
methodology and the Sustainability Appraisal also considered health related issues. 

Page 8



- 5 - 

 
12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

 
12.1 A public and business consultation is being undertaken by Hertfordshire County 

Council and this report proposes a response to that. 
 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 
 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-21 and, in 
particular, Priority 3 Our Housing - to plan for current and future needs and Priority 4 
Our Economy – sustainable growth. Responding to other authorities’ consultations 
helps this Council to meet these priorities effectively. 

14 Equality and Diversity 
 

14.1 Hertfordshire County Council has carried out an Equalities Impact Assessment of the 
policies set out in the Minerals Local Plan. 

 
 
Name of author Matthew Wilson   
Title Planning Policy and Implementation Manager 
Date August 2022  
 
 
Background papers:   
 
Hertfordshire County Council Minerals and Waste Local Plan (included as part of the agenda 
and papers for Hertfordshire County Council Environment Cabinet Panel 06 July 2022) 
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=6427#mgDocuments  
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 - Draft letter in response to the Minerals and Waste Local Plan consultation. 
  

Page 9

https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=6427#mgDocuments


- 6 - 

Appendix 1  
 
Draft letter in response to the Minerals and Waste Local Plan consultation. 
 
1. The Borough Council notes that the Draft Hertfordshire Minerals and Waste Local 

Plan (the Plan) places a heavy reliance on site specific allocations to the west of 
Hatfield to provide the sand and gravel supply to meet the plan provision. The only 
other part of the plan area where sand and gravel extraction is proposed is at the 
Briggens estate (east of Stanstead Abbots). This amounts to a significant 
concentration of allocations and this is particularly significant in the case of the west 
of Hatfield as the allocations are adjacent, or in close proximity to, the town’s urban 
area.  

 
2. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC) acknowledges that there is a long history 

of mineral extraction in the area west of Hatfield. With resources remaining in the area 
it would be expected for this to continue, subject to there being no adverse cumulative 
impact. It is further noted that two of these allocations have now been subject to 
planning applications for minerals extraction to the Minerals Planning Authority (MPA).  

 
3. The remaining allocation SS3 (Hatfield Quarry - Land adjoining Coopers Green Lane) 

is more problematic to the Borough Council. There is concern regarding the scale and 
timescales associated with the proposed allocation for sand and gravel at this location 
given its allocation (within the same boundaries) in the proposed submission Welwyn 
Hatfield Local Plan (WHLP) as an urban extension for Hatfield. The Hatfield urban 
extension is identified as allocation SDS5, a strategic development site, allocated 
under Policies SADM 26 and SP 22. The Hatfield urban extension (SDS5) is the 
largest allocation in the WHLP with around 1,750 dwellings along with employment 
and community uses. 

 
4. Potential conflict relates to the timescales involved. The submission Welwyn Hatfield 

Local Plan has this allocation being developed for completion during the plan period 
(which currently ends in 2036) with first dwelling completions taking place within the 
first five years following adoption commencing in 2025/26 (along with a much needed 
secondary school).  The draft Hertfordshire Minerals Local Plan suggests the start of 
extraction in years 1-5 of the plan (2020-2025) and extraction expected to take 9-14 
years.   

 
5. Both MA S02 (Hatfield Aerodrome) and MA S03 (Land adjoining Coopers Green Lane) 

of the draft Hertfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan are identified to commence 
in years 1-5 of the plan period and continue for 9-14 years and 30 years respectively. 
The cumulative impact is considered to pose significant challenges for WHBC in 
delivering their largest housing allocation (as the WHBC has a plan period to 2036) 
and thus affect the delivery of the Plan’s overall housing provision.  

 
6. The sand and gravel Annual Provision Rate of 1.31Mtpa is based on the 10-year 

average sales (2011-2020) figure (1.19Mt) plus an extra ten percent uplift.  The Plan 
notes that the uplift is intended to provide flexibility and accommodate future growth.  

 
7. The Plan has suggested that using the 10-year sales (1.19Mt) average figure to 

forecast future demand is insufficient. While the Council recognises that total sand 
and gravel sales figure has reached over this number five times in the past 10-year 
period (2011-2020), a ten year based figure in minerals local plans, as supported by 

Page 10



- 7 - 

the minerals industry and as set out in the NPPF, picks up both periods of economic 
growth and economic stagnation/decline.  

 
8. It is therefore likely that, contrary to what is assumed by the Plan, a continuing higher 

production level will not endure for the duration of the plan and that extraction will be 
affected by economically challenging circumstances at certain points over its plan 
period. 

 
9. It is unclear what if any circumstances exist that invoke any specific local 

circumstances to go above a ten year annual average sales figure.  It is considered 
that levels of growth and infrastructure proposals are not particularly significant to 
necessitate a specific upward adjustment to a ten year based provision figure plus 
buffer.  

 
10. While the report notes there are significant growth aspirations within the Hertfordshire 

District and Borough Local Plans and allocations are starting to come forward for 
development, caution should be applied considering future reforms to the planning 
system arsing through the Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill. 

 
11. Therefore, it could be considered generous in utilising an annual provision figure of 

1.17 Mt as many other authorities have in their adopted plans, or even a three year 
annual average figure of 1.19 Mt as it is understood many other authorities have in 
their adopted plans.  
 

12. Furthermore, not all authorities work on the basis of identifying a total aggregates 
provision for the plan period plus seven years thereafter in their adopted plans, making 
the not unreasonable assumption that the plan will not reach the end of its plan period 
as it will have been subject to a full or partial review by that stage. If a seven year 
period was not added to the provision at the end of the plan period, then even on the 
provision in the HMLP (rather than a ten years annual average sales figure), the plan 
has more than enough allocations without SS3.   

 
13. It is considered that there is no over-riding need to allocate MAS03: Land Adjoining 

Coopers Green Lane (3.52Mt).  However, it should be emphasised that not allocating 
MAS03 does not mean that extraction could not take place at this location. However, 
any proposals for extraction would need to come forward in a way that does not 
compromise the objectives of the strategic development site allocation in the 
submission Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan. As such extraction should be complementary 
to the phasing and development of the Hatfield urban extension rather than extraction 
driving its phasing and development. The provision of aggregates from the site would 
then form a windfall, contributing towards the total provision over the plan period, and 
would still act to ensure a steady and adequate supply of aggregates to support 
planned growth 

 
14. This would also help in managing the effects of mineral extraction on both the existing 

residents of Hatfield Garden Village and early occupiers of the new dwellings in the 
urban extension. 

 
15. WHBC seeks the allocation MAS03: Land Adjoining Coopers Green Lane is removed 

from Policy 2 and that the explanatory text is consequently amended to reflect this 
change.  

 

Page 11



- 8 - 

16. The Plan seeks to safeguard minerals and waste management sites and associated 
infrastructure that is of critical importance.  Burnside (Hatfield) is identified as one of 
several Mineral Development Sites (MDS) that play an important role in the operation 
of the minerals industry.  Burnside, which adjoins the Strategic Development Site 
Birchall Garden Suburb in the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan, and Birchall Lane/Cole 
Green lies within the policy area for Birchall Garden Suburb.  

 
17. As the County Council will be aware the Welwyn Hatfield Draft Local plan proposes 

(Policy SP19) a sustainable urban extension at Birchall Garden Suburb for 600 
dwellings, plus development and associated uses within East Herts District Council; 
which are adjacent to or located within close proximity to the above mineral facilities 
(site SDS2). A masterplan for this area is to be prepared which will include 
consideration of the facilities.  A green buffer has been proposed around the facilities 
at Burnside on the Policies Map, and the area south of the facilities at Birchall 
Lane/Cole Green is being proposed as open space.  It is considered that the plan 
should acknowledge this and not require further consultation with HCC.  

Page 12



 

1 

 

Part I 

Main author: Claire Nicholls 
Executive Member: Cllr. Bernard Sarson 
Peartree Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 15 SEPTEMBER 2022 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (REGENERATION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT) 

INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING SCHEME, PARKING PLACES AND OTHER 
WAITING RESTRICTIONS, IN VARIOUS ROADS, PEARTREE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In March 2021, Parking Services undertook a parking survey with residents and businesses 
in Peartree, Welwyn Garden City. The scope of the survey took in the majority of the 
Peartree ward barring the industrial area that will be worked on outside of the residents’ 
consultation. The purpose of the survey was to engage with residents and businesses in 
seeking their views on parking options for the area.  

1.2 Owing to the large geographical footprint of the survey, a decision was made to split the 
ward into 4 different areas to help focus on the more localised needs of the residents and 
businesses within the ward. This report focuses on the outcome of the consultation within 
Area 1 of the Peartree Ward.  

1.3 Area 1 comprises of the west residential section of the ward and includes the following 
roads; Athelstan Walk North, Athelstan Walk South, Broadwater Crescent, By 
The Mount, Corals Mead, Creswick, Edgars Court, Goblins Green, Moatwood 
Green and The Reeds. These roads are closest to the Broadwater Road sites which are 
due to be redeveloped over the next few years where additional parking pressures may 
be displaced into the area. 

1.4 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation pertaining to Peartree 1, the 
statutory consultation and the recommended course of action.  

1.5 It is now established practice that with all new parking restrictions, the Council monitor 
any reports as to their effectiveness for the first 6 months following their implementation. 
Should the Council receive reports requesting changes or amendments to the new 
restrictions, then a review of the restrictions would take place which may result in further 
recommendations. A feedback form will be available on the Council’s website after the 
introduction of restrictions.  

1.6 Three objections have been received relating to the proposed order(s) which are set out 
below in Paragraph 4. All objections are contained within Appendix A.  
 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Peartree (1), Welwyn Garden 
City) (Restriction of Waiting Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order 2022”  

2.2 That the Panel considers the objections received in Section 5 in addition to the issues 
raised in Section 16 around equalities and diversity and recommends to Cabinet to proceed 
with the creation of the traffic regulation order as advertised; and to note the delegated 
powers conferred to Executive Member for Community Safety & Parking to sign an 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

executive member decision to proceed with the creation of the traffic regulation order as 
advertised, subject to unanimous recommendation of the Panel.   

2.3 “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Peartree (1), Welwyn Garden 
City) (Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order 2022” 

2.4 That the Panel considers the issues raised in Section 16 around equalities and diversity 
and recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the creation of the amended traffic regulation 
order as advertised and to note the delegated powers conferred to Executive Member for 
Community Safety & Parking to sign an executive member decision to proceed with the 
creation of the traffic regulation order as advertised, subject to unanimous 
recommendation of the Panel. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 All residents of the Peartree Ward were written to in March 2021 inviting them to fill in a 
short survey requesting their views on any ongoing issues within their street as well as 
asking them to provide input on any improvements or restrictions that could be offered 
to improve the parking situation throughout the ward. To ensure the survey reached the 
current resident at that moment, all letters were addressed to “The Occupier”.  

3.2 After an initial low response rate of 16% from Peartree Ward, follow up letters were sent 
out to residents. Those who had already submitted survey responses were given an 
update that we were extending the deadline for survey responses whilst those we had not 
received an initial response from were reminded, they had additional time to respond.  

3.3 Area 1 which this report focuses on has 386 households. From these households, 124 
survey responses were received, response rate of 32.1%. The highest response rate from 
area 1 was received from The Reeds and the lowest response rate was received from 
Edgars Court. 

3.4 When asked about the existing issues within these roads, the following points are of note; 
Over 50% of respondents highlighted that parking issues occur during the mornings, 
afternoons and evenings which shows that residents are experiencing parking issues 
throughout the whole day. 

3.5 Most respondents identified that issues occurred throughout the week and did not single 
out weekdays or weekends as specific times of the week where there was an increase in 
parking issues. 

3.6 46% of respondents reported that verge and footway parking was an existing issue in 
their road and 64% of respondents stated non-resident parking was an issue.  

3.7 Of the 109 residents that completed the parking restriction section of the survey, 59.63% 
were in favour of a resident permit scheme whilst 33.03% did not want any restrictions 
at all.  

3.8 Although Goblins Green was not in favour of a resident permit scheme and there was a 
split vote in Corals Mead and Creswick Court, Parking Services looked to propose a 
resident permit scheme in those roads to remove the likelihood of parking displacement 
from the other interlinking roads that did have a majority response in favour.  

3.9 Although residents were in favour of various times for parking restrictions to start and 
finish, the survey indicated that the majority of residents who responded preferred the 
restrictions start times 8-9am and finishing time 6pm. 

Page 14



3 

 

3.10 At Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel on 10th March 2022, Parking Services put forward 
a proposal that a Resident Permit Parking Scheme be introduced into the Peartree 1 Area. 
Due to objections that had been received during the objection period, the panel requested 
that Parking Services return to the residents of Peartree Area 1 and reconsult them on the 
preferred times and days that the RPPS would be in force. 

3.11 On 17th May 2022, the Peartree 1 residents were written to asking them to choose 
between 10-12 Monday-Friday and 8-6 Monday-Saturday as to which of these restriction 
periods they would prefer. Residents were asked to either fill in an online survey to select 
their preference or contact the council to receive a paper copy of the survey.  

3.12 The timing survey results were answered by 115 households (29.8% response rate). 78 
(67.83%) voted for Monday to Friday 10am to 12noon, 32 (27.83%) voted for Monday to 
Saturday 8am to 6pm. The remaining responses did not vote for either option. The timing 
survey led to some additional households responding, and some who previously contacted 
us not replying.  

3.13 Parking Services wrote back to residents on 30th June 2022 outlining the outcome and the 
intention to advertise the new Traffic Regulation Orders. We also advised in the letter that 
any previously lodged objections are not being counted, and a new objection period would 
open. 

4 Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) 

4.1 On the 6th July 2022, a Public Notice of Intention proposing the below orders was 
advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. (See Appendix C). 

           “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Peartree (1), Welwyn 
Garden City) (Restriction of Waiting Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order 
2022”   

          “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Peartree (1), Welwyn Garden 
City) (Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or Footway) Order 2022” 

4.2 Notices were erected in the affected length of roads and letters delivered to residents and 
businesses. Plans illustrating the proposals for each Order are attached to this report. (See 
Appendix B). 

5 Objections 

5.1 3 Objections were received pertaining to the new proposed permit and yellow line 
restrictions in Peartree Area 1 (See Appendix A). 386 households were consulted, the 
objection rate being 0.78%.   

5.2 No objections were received in relation to the proposed verge and footway parking 
prohibition.  

Page 15



 

4 

 

5.3 The below table summarises the objections, number of objections and the Councils response. 

Objection Number of 
Objectors 

Response 

The newly proposed 2 hours 
permit scheme restrictions are 
not adequate to resolve the 
ongoing issues with commuters 
and visitors to nearby flats 

1 household 
objection  

 

The results of the timing survey showed that 69.9% of respondents would prefer the restrictions 
for the shorter time period of 10am-12pm Monday-Friday. Whilst we recognise the views of the 
objector that this shorter time period may not be a resolution to parking issues that take place 
throughout the day, we are obliged to strongly take into consideration that the majority of residents 
would prefer shorter hours. Parking Services believes the shorter restriction hours may not resolve 
parking displacement from nearby of future residential developments, however, it would stop all 
day parking by non-residents of the permit zone. 

Residents should not be 
expected to have to pay for the 
cost of permits or visitor 
vouchers. Resident also feels 
that all day restrictions would 
also be a better option than 2 
hours a day 

1 household 
objection  

 

Whilst we agree that the cost of living has gone up, the cost of designing, introducing, and 
maintaining a resident permit scheme is partly self-funding by residents who would get direct benefit 
from better availability of parking. Council Tax funds cannot be used to finance parking permits. 
The parking permits fees and charges are set by Council to correct fund the service and balanced 
budget and is amongst the lowest on street permit costs in Hertfordshire and beyond. With regards 
to a preference for all day restrictions, the results of the survey showed that 69.9% of respondents 
prefer the restrictions for the shorter time period of 10am-12pm Monday-Friday. A shorter restriction 
time would reduce the period a visitor voucher is required (therefore the resident may not need to 
buy many vouchers) 

Objector is against introduction 
of double yellow lines in the 
form of junction protection as it 
will prevent them from parking 
close to junctions and remove 
parking spaces 

1 household 
objection  

 

Double yellow lines are being introduced as standard as a form of junction protection throughout 
the borough whenever Parking Services consults an area for parking controls. The proposed junction 
protection is compatible with the Highway Code guidance that no vehicle should be parked within 
10 metres of a junction and is proposed to highlight this point to motorists and to provide enhanced 
junction visibility for road users and pedestrians alike. 

P
age 16



 

5 

 

6 Legal Implication(s) 

6.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations follow a 
statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996  

6.2 The Council can amend proposals once advertised. Any proposals that are less restrictive 
can be done without having to re-advertise the Traffic Regulation Order. 

6.3 Through the Agency Agreement with Hertfordshire County Council, Welwyn Hatfield can 
implement restrictions on any road and links in with Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984 
powers to make certain Orders. 

6.4 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 places an obligation on the Council to have due 
regard to the need of the advance equality of opportunity between those groups who 
share protected characteristics and those who do not, when coming to a decision on the 
exercise of any of its functions.  

7 Financial Implication(s) 

7.1 The cost of TRO and Parking Improvement works recommended in this report will be 
funded through existing Parking Services revenue and capital budgets. 

8 Risk Management Implications 

8.1 Changing the parking conditions could generate negative publicity. Some parking may be 
displaced into nearby roads where no restrictions exist. 

8.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months after 
any are implemented. A feedback form will be available on the Council’s website after the 
introduction of restrictions to also monitor resident’s comments. During this period all 
reports of safety issues or parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety 
issues are discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and 
carry out the appropriate remedial action. 

9 Security & Terrorism Implications 

9.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

10 Human Resources 

10.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

11 Communication and Engagement 

11.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation process 
set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and Wales) Regulations 
1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes consulting directly with all 
affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, such as the Police and Hertfordshire 
County Council. Formal objections can only be made during the period stated on the 
Notice of Proposal and stating the grounds on which they are being made.  

11.2 Ward Members as well as emergency services and Hertfordshire County Council have also 
been consulted as part of this process and no objections have been received relating to 
the proposals recommended in this report. 

Page 17



6 

 

11.3 In addition, Public Notices are required to be erected within all affected roads and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 

11.4 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

12 Health and Wellbeing 

12.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

13 Procurement Implications 

13.1 There are no known procurement implications in relation to the proposals in this report. 

14 Climate Change Implication(s) 

14.1 There is a potential for a positive climate change implication, by restricting parking for 
part of the day to resident permit holders only can in some parts of the area, make it 
easier for residents to find available parking thus reducing emissions of driving further to 
look for a parking space. By prohibiting verge parking, verges are likely to recover leading 
to ecological enhancement. 

14.2  Parking restrictions may result in non-residents using alternative methods of transport to 
travel to the area.  This may result in a reduction of carbon emissions. 

15 Link to Corporate Priorities 

15.1 This report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities to engage with our communities 
and deliver value for money.  

16 Equality and Diversity 

16.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.  

16.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for both positive and negative impacts on Age, 
Disability, Pregnancy and Maternity. No issues were raised from any of these characteristic 
groups during the course of the consultation process; however, the use of yellow lines to 
prevent parking on junctions may have an effect on these groups in that they might have 
to park further away. 

In mitigation there are statutory exemptions contained within the Order which allow for 
the unloading and loading of goods and passengers while parked on yellow lines. Blue 
badge holders can also park on double yellow line restrictions for up to 3 hours. The 
introduction of resident permit parking will free up additional capacity which will allow 
these groups better opportunities to park closer to home. Visitor permits may be 
purchased at a 50% discounted rate for those persons in receipt of a state pension. 
Parking close to junctions creates a hazard in that in reduces visibility on entry and exit. 
The benefits accrued to the new restrictions outweigh the above-mentioned risks. 

16.3 Parking Services believe that the benefits gained from double yellow lines far outweigh 
any drawbacks as it enhances the safe navigation of the highway for all. 

16.4 In addition, the Council will monitor the effectiveness of the scheme for the first 6 months 
and further recommendations may be made at a later date; should any unintended 
impacts arise, as a result of the new scheme being introduced. 

Page 18



7 

 

 

Name of author                  Claire Nicholls 
Title                                   Parking Services Officer  
Date                                  12 August 2022 
 
Background papers: 

Peartree 1 Objections – Appendix A 

Peartree 1 Notice of Intention – Appendix B 

Peartree 1 Plans – Appendix C 

Peartree 1 Survey results table – Appendix D 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To: parking
Subject: Peartree Area 1 parking permit scheme.
Date: 04 July 2022 15:48:54

You don't often get email from  Learn why this is important

** WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please
be extra vigilant when opening attachments or clicking links ** 

Dear sir/madam,

Thank you for your letter that I have received today regarding Peartree Area 1 update.

I observe that you feel that Monday to Friday 10 a.m. to 12 p.m. parking restrictions would
be adequate. 2 hours restricted parking would not help us and doesn't seem worth all the
effort you will make to enforce it.

I must object to this. 10am to 12pm would not help the parking problems here.  Where I
live is Moatwood Green, a very small cul-de-sac off Broadwater Road with very limited
parking. On a daily basis a large proportion of the available spaces are taken up by
workmen from the nearby building sites, commuters and visitors to the flats further down
Broadwater road. On top of this we also get commercial vans parked here and the driver
going off as not a resident and residents from Wellgarth parking here as it's easier for them
to get to the main road. 

All this puts massive strain on a very limited parking spaces, most people that live here
have more than one car. This means often having to park one behind the other in the
parking bays where I live. There is literally nowhere else to park, which is not good as
myself and my husband have mobility issues and cannot walk far. 

Therefore, Monday to Saturday 8am to 6pm is the only option that would work for the
whole area and  justify your expense in implementing it etc.

Yours faithfully,

APPENDIX A

Page 21

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


APPENDIX A

Page 22



From:
To: parking
Subject: Objections to Proposed Permit Zone Called "A01"
Date: 20 July 2022 00:23:25

You don't often get email from . Learn why this is important

** WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please
be extra vigilant when opening attachments or clicking links ** 
Good Morning,

I trust you are well.

I'm reading the Proposal for the  Permit Zone Called "A01".

The letter says that Double Yellow lines on junctions will be introduced to enhance
highway(?!) vision..
  I'm not sure what "highway vision" refers to in this letter.. This "A01" zone (Broadwater
Crescent area) is full of dead-ends and parking cars, which results all cars driving only 20-
25mph speed..  Creating a so-called "highway vision" seems to be absolutely unnecessary -
especially if this results in SIGNIFICANTLY less car park places?!

If I understand correctly, by prohibiting parking on the footway and verges and on the
newly introduced double yellow lines, the available car park places will be reduced by
approximately 20%, right?!

If some people want a Parking Permit for certain hours, that is fine, I'm not against it... If
they want everyone to pay for a parking permit instead of the current Free Parking
possibility..  Then let's pay for it...

But Reducing the already limited car park spaces by an additional 20% by prohibiting to
park on footway and verge, and by creating NEEDLESS double yellow lines?!

I WOULD LIKE TO OBJECT THE FURTHER LIMITATIONS OF THE ALREADY
LIMITED PARKING SPACES - ESPECIALLY INTRODUCING DOUBLE
YELLOW LINES on junctions into this area, where cars always drive slowly and we've
never had any accidents/incidents in the junctions of this neighborhoods.

By any chance, can we, the residents who live in this area, vote on introducing the
Double Yellow Lines on junctions (and on whether prohibiting parking on
verge/footway) - or this is something we just have to accept and live with (regardless if we
want these car park space limitations or not)?!

Thank you for taking the time to look into this objection.

Kindest Regards,

Creswick Court,
Welwyn Garden City

APPENDIX A

Page 23

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


AL7 3SX

APPENDIX A

Page 24



APPENDIX B

Page 25



APPENDIX B

Page 26



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, PEARTREE (1), WELWYN GARDEN CITY) (RESTRICTION OF WAITING 
AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2022 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, PEARTREE (1), WELWYN GARDEN CITY) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING 

AND WAITING ON VERGE OR FOOTWAY) ORDER 2022 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council) 
proposes to make the above Orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to introduce restrictions in Various Roads, Peartree, 
Welwyn Garden City as specified in the Schedules to this Notice. 
 
Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Orders, the plans and the statement of reasons for proposing which may be inspected 
on our website https://www.welhat.gov.uk/parking-consultations , or upon appointment - during normal reception opening hours at Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City from  6th July 2022. A copy can also be sent via post during this period upon 
request. 
  
General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Mr Jack Carson, Parking Services Officer, Council Offices, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email parking@welhat.gov.uk  
 
Objections to the proposals should be made in writing via post to Mr Geoff Sampson, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts AL8 6AE OR by email at parking@welhat.gov.uk by  27th July 2022, stating the grounds on which they are made.  
 
SCHEDULE 1: No stopping or waiting at any time on verge or footway - those sections of road herein listed and as set out in the 
Order and accompanying plans 
 
Parts of Athelstan Walk North, Athelstan Walk South, Broadwater Crescent, Broadwater Road, By The Mount, Corals Mead, Creswick Court, 
Edgars Court, Goblins Green and The Reeds. 
 
 
SCHEDULE 2: No waiting, No loading or unloading at any time 
 
Parts of Broadwater Crescent, Broadwater Road, Holwell Road, Moatwood Green and The Reeds 
 
 
SCHEDULE 3: No Waiting at any time Restrictions - those sections of road(s) listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying 
plans  
 
Parts of Athelstan Walk North, Athelstan Walk South, Broadwater Crescent, By The Mount, Corals Mead, Creswick Court, Edgars Court and 
Goblins Green. 
 
 
SCHEDULE 4: Permit Parking Places, Zone A01  Monday to Friday 10am to 12noon – those sections of road(s) listed below as set 
out in the Order and accompanying plans 
 
Parts of Athelstan Walk North, Athelstan Walk South, Broadwater Crescent, By The Mount, Corals Mead, Creswick Court, Edgars Court, 
Goblins Green, Moatwood Green and The Reeds. 
 
 
SCHEDULE 5: Eligible Addresses for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Schedule 1: Parking Zone  
 

Road Zone 
Code 

Eligible Addresses 

Athelstan Walk 
North 

A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 
30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37. 

Athelstan Walk 
South 

A01 Nos. 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 
63, 64. 

Broadwater 
Crescent 

A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 
30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 
56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 
82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 
106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 115, 117, 118, 119, 121, 123, 125, 127, 129, 131, 133, 135, 
137, 139, 141, 143, 145, 147, 149, 151, 153, 155, 157, 159, 161, 163, 165, 167, 169, 171. 

By The Mount A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 
30, 31, 32, 33, 34. 

Corals Mead A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26. 
Creswick Court A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26. 
Edgars Court A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22. 
Goblins Green A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 

30, 31, 32. 
Moatwood Green A01 Nos 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 28, 30, 32, 

34, 36 
The Reeds A01 Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16. 

 
 
SCHEDULE 6: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 
Permit Type Limit 
Resident Permit  No limit 

APPENDIX C

Page 27

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/parking-consultations
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk


Resident Permit for motorcycle No limit 
Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of  2 vehicle registration numbers 
Visitor Voucher Books of 20 Daily Vouchers only 

Maximum purchase 240 days per year. 
Doctors/ Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council's discretion 
Special Permit Allocated at Council's discretion 

 
SCHEDULE 7: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers* 
 

Application type Charges 
Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free  
Resident Permit for motorcycle £11 per annum 
Resident Permit for first car £30 per annum 
Resident Permit for second car £50 per annum 
Resident Permit for third or subsequent 
cars 

£70 per annum 

Business Permit £245 per annum 
Visitor Voucher 
 

55p per day or £5.50 per book to residents receiving state pension; sold in whole books of 
20 Daily Vouchers only. 

Doctors/ Health Visitor Permit £24 per annum 
Special Permit Charged at council's discretion 
Administration type Charges 
Refund Parking Permit and vouchers £5.50 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5.50 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5.50 whole books only 

 
SCHEDULE 8: Refunds* 
 
Permit Type Refund 
Resident Permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 
Resident Permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 
Residents Permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 
Resident Permit for third or 
subsequent cars 

Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 

Business Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 
Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only on amounts above £5.50 
Doctors/ Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 
Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5.50 

 
*The charges may be amended by the Local Authority giving notice in accordance with section 46A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  
 
Geoff Sampson, 
Assistant Director (Regeneration and Economic Development) 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
 
 4th July 2022 
 
 
Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Any personal data you provide in responding to this Notice will be 
treated as confidential but will be shared with WHBC Officers; Borough Councillors and contracted third parties who are involved in the statutory process. 
We will not share identifiable data with third parties outside of the statutory process. Guidance on your rights in respect of personal data are published in 
the Privacy Policy on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk  

APPENDIX C

Page 28

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


Mon - Fri Mon - Sat
10am - 12pm 8am - 6pm

Athelstan Walk North 36 4 2
Athelstan Walk South 27 3 3
Broadwater Crescent 141 30 9
By The Mount 33 6 3
Corals Mead 26 2 1
Creswick Court 25 6 3
Edgars Court 21 1 1
Goblins Green 31 8 1
Moatwood Green 30 8 6
The Reeds 16 10 3

TOTALS 386 78 32

Peartree Area 1 - Timing Survey Results

HouseholdsStreet

APPENDIX D

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN CONSULTATION
	8 INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING SCHEME, PARKING PLACES AND OTHER WAITING RESTRICTIONS, IN VARIOUS ROADS, PEARTREE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY
	8 - Appendix A
	Objection 1
	Objection 3

	8 - Appendix B
	PT1-001-2022
	PT1-VPO-2022

	8 - Appendix C
	8 - Appendix D
	Sheet1





